Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

3-30-2018

State v. Pinell Appellant's Brief Dckt. 45344

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

Brian Pinell pled guilty to one count of aggravated assault on a law enforcement officer and was sentenced to a unified term of eight years, with three years fixed. Mr. Pinell asserts the district court abused its discretion by imposing an excessive sentence upon him in light of the mitigating factors that are present in his case.

Statement of the Facts & Course of Proceedings

Highly intoxicated and reeling from a fight with his girlfriend, 26 year-old Brian Pinell sped his SUV past two sheriff's deputies with a friend in the passenger seat; drove recklessly

while trying to elude the deputies; crashed into some rocks; pointed a rifle at the deputies; and then ran into the desert. (PSI, pp.4-6.)¹ After contemplating suicide, Mr. Pinell turned himself in the following day. (PSI, p.6.) Mr. Pinell waived his right to a preliminary hearing and the State filed an Information charging him with two counts of aggravated assault on certain law enforcement personnel, eluding a police officer, felony driving under the influence, and possession of an open container of alcohol in a motor vehicle. (R., pp.63-66, 72-74.)

Mr. Pinell pled guilty to Count I of an Amended Information charging him with aggravated assault on certain law enforcement personnel, with both deputies named as victims; in exchange, the State agreed to dismiss the remaining counts with no agreed upon sentencing recommendations. (R., pp.83-89; Tr., p.4, L.15 – p.14, L.11.) During the sentencing hearing, the State asked the court to impose a unified term of ten years, with five years fixed, while counsel for Mr. Pinell requested the court either place Mr. Pinell on probation or retain jurisdiction, but Mr. Pinell's counsel did not recommend an underlying sentence. (Tr., p.24, Ls.23-24; p.33, Ls.1-15.) The district court imposed a unified term of eight years, with three years fixed, declining to place Mr. Pinell on probation or retain jurisdiction. (R., pp.92-99; Tr., p.36, Ls.14-22.) Mr. Pinell filed a timely Notice of Appeal.² (R., pp.102-105.)

_

¹ Citations to the Presentence Investigation Report and its attached documents will use the designation "PSI," as well as the page numbers associated with the electronic file containing those documents.

² Mr. Pinell also filed a timely Rule 35 motion seeking leniency, which was denied by the district court. (R., pp.110-116.) Because Mr. Pinell did not include any new or additional information in support of his motion, and in light of the relevant standards of review, Mr. Pinell does not raise any issues related to the denial of his Rule 35 motion in this appeal.

ISSUE

Did the district court abuse its discretion when it imposed upon Mr. Pinell a unified sentence of eight years, with three years fixed, in light of the mitigating factors that exist in this case?

<u>ARGUMENT</u>

The District Court Abused Its Discretion When It Imposed Upon Mr. Pinell A Unified Sentence
Of Eight Years, With Three Years Fixed, In Light Of The Mitigating Factors That Exist In This
Case

Mr. Pinell asserts that, given any view of the facts, his unified sentence of eight years, with three years fixed, is excessive. Where a defendant contends that the sentencing court imposed an excessively harsh sentence, the appellate court will conduct an independent review of the record giving consideration to the nature of the offense, the character of the offender, and the protection of the public interest. *See State v. Reinke*, 103 Idaho 771 (Ct. App. 1982).

The Idaho Supreme Court has held that, ""[w]here a sentence is within statutory limits, an appellant has the burden of showing a clear abuse of discretion on the part of the court imposing the sentence." *State v. Jackson*, 130 Idaho 293, 294 (1997) (quoting *State v. Cotton*, 100 Idaho 573, 577 (1979)). Mr. Pinell does not allege that his sentence exceeds the statutory maximum. Accordingly, in order to show an abuse of discretion, Mr. Pinell must show that in light of the governing criteria, the sentence was excessive considering any view of the facts. *Id.* (citing *State v. Broadhead*, 120 Idaho 141, 145 (1991), *overruled on other grounds by State v. Brown*, 121 Idaho 385 (1992)). The governing criteria or objectives of criminal punishment are: (1) protection of society; (2) deterrence of the individual and the public generally; (3) the possibility of rehabilitation; and (4) punishment or retribution for wrongdoing. *Id.* (quoting *State v. Wolfe*, 99 Idaho 382, 384 (1978), *overruled on other grounds by State v. Coassolo*, 136 Idaho 138 (2001)).

Mr. Pinell was very remorseful for his actions and he has committed himself to his sobriety. At the time of his crime, he was drinking one-fifth of a gallon of whiskey every day. (PSI, p.12.) He stated that he "wish[ed] [he] could have seen through the w[h]iskey long enough to realize how much damage it had done to [his] life." (PSI, p.6.) When he first stopped drinking after the instant offense, Mr. Pinell did not want to be sober; however, after a couple of weeks he started to feel much better and decided that he wants to be sober. (PSI, p.13.) Mr. Pinell recognized that alcohol, jealousy, and the guilt stemming from a close friend's death, were areas that contributed to his criminal behavior, and he is committed to remaining sober and attending anger management classes. (PSI, p.14.) He wrote a letter to the district court expressing his shame and disappointment in himself for his criminal activity, and he is proud of the fact that he has not had a drink since the night of the incident. (PSI, pp.40-42.)

Mr. Pinell also enjoys the support of his mother, Candice Pinell. Ms. Pinell wrote a letter to the court expressing that her son is a kind and helpful person, who has been scarred by the emotional abuse suffered at the hands of his father when he was a child, the death by suicide of his father when he was only 13, and the murder of his close friend when he was only 17. (R., pp.33-34.) Ms. Pinell also addressed the court during the sentencing hearing and let the court know that her son has the support of his family and friends. (Tr., p.26, L.21 – p.27, L.8.)

Idaho courts recognize that alcoholism and the willingness to seek treatment, remorse for one's conduct, and the support of family and friends, are all mitigating factors that should be considered by the district court when that court imposes a sentence. *See State v. Nice*, 103 Idaho 89 (1982); *State v. Shideler*, 103 Idaho 593 (1982); *State v. Alberts*, 121 Idaho 204 (Ct. App. 1991). In light of the mitigating factors that exist in his case, Mr. Pinell asserts that the district court abused its discretion by imposing an excessive sentence.

CONCLUSION

Mr. Pinell respectfully requests that this Court remand his case to the district court with instructions that the court retain jurisdiction, or for whatever other relief this Court deems appropriate.