Uldaho Law

## Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

---

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

---

4-27-2018

### State v. Pinell Respondent's Brief Dckt. 45344

Issue

Has Pinell failed to establish that the district court abused its discretion by imposing a unified sentence of eight years, with three years fixed, upon his guilty plea to aggravated assault on law enforcement officers?

Pinell Has Failed To Establish That The District Court Abused Its Sentencing Discretion

Pinell consumed alcohol while target shooting at “rock chucks” with a friend, became “pretty drunk,” and then went to a bar. (PSI, pp.4, 6.<sup>1</sup>) When his girlfriend declined to join

<sup>1</sup> PSI page numbers correspond with the page numbers of the electronic file “#45344 Appeal Conf. Exhibits Brian Pinell.pdf.”

him at the bar, Pinell became “enraged” and left the bar, driving his vehicle at “a high rate of speed” while he was “highly intoxicated.” (PSI, pp.4, 6.) He “crashed into a concrete wall,” but “kept going.” (PSI, pp.4-5.) Officers pursued Pinell after observing him “lose control and spin 360 degrees in an intersection” and then continue “driving recklessly.” (PSI, p.4.) When Pinell saw the police behind him, he was “convinced” that his girlfriend “had called them on [him]” and “decided maybe [he] could get away.” (PSI, p.6.) He attempted to turn onto a dirt road, “missed the road and crashed through some wooden posts, went down a steep barrow pit, and hit a large dirt mound” before getting back on the road and continuing eastbound. (PSI, p.4.)

Pinell eventually “hit some boulders and came to a stop,” at which time he exited the vehicle and retrieved a “long rifle with a scope on it.” (PSI, p.5; R., pp.12-13.) Pinell walked toward the officers’ patrol vehicle with the rifle pointed at the windshield, “brought the rifle to his shoulder and looked through the scope pointing the muzzle towards patrol vehicle,” and “attempt[ed] to manipulate the action on the rifle.” (PSI, p.4; R., p.12.) Fearing for their lives, the officers exited the patrol vehicle and “found cover behind it.” (R., p.12; PSI, p.4.) Pinell then turned and fled, disregarding the officers’ orders to stop. (R., p.12, PSI, p.4.) Upon securing Pinell’s vehicle – which he had left running – the officers observed “three more rifles in between the two front seats,” “several cans of open and unopened beer,” and “at least one open bottle of liquor.” (R., p.14.)

The state charged Pinell with open container, misdemeanor DUI, felony eluding, and two counts of aggravated assault on a law enforcement officer. (R., pp.72-74.) Pursuant to a plea agreement, Pinell pled guilty to one count of aggravated assault on law enforcement officers (amended to reflect both victims/officers) and the state dismissed the remaining charges. (R., pp.83-89.) The district court imposed a unified sentence of eight years, with three years fixed.

(R., pp.95-99.) Pinell filed a notice of appeal timely from the judgment of conviction. (R., pp.102-05.)

Pinell asserts his sentence is excessive in light of his alcohol abuse, willingness to participate in treatment, support from his mother, and purported remorse. (Appellant's brief, pp.3-4.) The record supports the sentence imposed.

When evaluating whether a sentence is excessive, the court considers the entire length of the sentence under an abuse of discretion standard. State v. McIntosh, 160 Idaho 1, 8, 368 P.3d 621, 628 (2016); State v. Stevens, 146 Idaho 139, 148, 191 P.3d 217, 226 (2008). It is presumed that the fixed portion of the sentence will be the defendant's probable term of confinement. State v. Oliver, 144 Idaho 722, 726, 170 P.3d 687, 391 (2007). Where a sentence is within statutory limits, the appellant bears the burden of demonstrating that it is a clear abuse of discretion. McIntosh, 160 Idaho at 8, 368 P.3d at 628 (citations omitted). To carry this burden the appellant must show the sentence is excessive under any reasonable view of the facts. Id. A sentence is reasonable if it appears necessary to accomplish the primary objective of protecting society and to achieve any or all of the related goals of deterrence, rehabilitation, or retribution. Id. The district court has the discretion to weigh those objectives and give them differing weights when deciding upon the sentence. Id. at 9, 368 P.3d at 629; State v. Moore, 131 Idaho 814, 825, 965 P.2d 174, 185 (1998) (court did not abuse its discretion in concluding that the objectives of punishment, deterrence and protection of society outweighed the need for rehabilitation). "In deference to the trial judge, this Court will not substitute its view of a reasonable sentence where reasonable minds might differ." McIntosh, 160 Idaho at 8, 368 P.3d at 628 (quoting Stevens, 146 Idaho at 148-49, 191 P.3d at 226-27). Furthermore, "[a] sentence fixed within the limits

prescribed by the statute will ordinarily not be considered an abuse of discretion by the trial court.” Id. (quoting State v. Nice, 103 Idaho 89, 90, 645 P.2d 323, 324 (1982)).

The maximum prison sentence for aggravated assault on law enforcement officers is 10 years. I.C. §§ 18-906, -915(1)(b). The district court imposed a unified sentence of eight years, with three years fixed, which falls well within the statutory guidelines. (R., pp.95-99.) Furthermore, Pinell’s sentence is appropriate in light of the extremely dangerous nature of the offense and Pinell’s ongoing disregard for the law and the safety of others. (Appellant’s brief, pp.3-4.) As a juvenile, Pinell disregarded the rights of others by committing the crime of vandalism. (PSI, p.6.) As an adult, he was convicted of DUI and disturbing the peace (amended from domestic battery in the presence of a child), after which he persisted in violating the law – and disregarded efforts to protect the community – by continuing to drive with a suspended driver’s license; he quickly incurred a conviction for DWP, then a conviction for failure to purchase a driver’s license, followed by a second conviction for DWP, along with a conviction for open container. (PSI, pp.7-8.) Pinell was subsequently convicted of a second DUI and, despite completing substance abuse treatment, he once again chose to endanger the community by driving while intoxicated in the instant offense. (PSI, pp.4, 8, 14.)

Pinell’s conduct in the instant offense was exceedingly dangerous. Not only did he drive while highly intoxicated, he continued to drive recklessly after repeatedly losing control of his vehicle and after his passenger asked him to stop and to be let out of the vehicle, and he deliberately chose to flee from police, simply because he was ““upset”” with his girlfriend and ““decided maybe [he] could get away.”” (PSI, pp.4-6.) After his vehicle was disabled, Pinell added to the peril by exiting his vehicle with a rifle and walking toward the officers’ patrol vehicle with the rifle aimed at their windshield. (PSI, p.4.) One of the officers reported:

At this point I thought the suspect was going to start shooting and I expected to get shot at any moment. I was in absolute fear for my life and in fear of Deputy Wethern[']s life. We both exited the vehicle and found cover behind it. I was able to grab my patrol rifle in case we ended up in a gun fight with the suspect. I made my way over to the passenger side of the truck to find the suspect. My full intention was to engage the suspect with my rifle if he was still threatening us.

(R., p.12.) At sentencing, the state recommended a unified sentence of 10 years, with five years fixed, stating:

The reason why we're asking for that amount of time is due to the fact that this particular defendant but for the fact that -- at least from the video it appears as though but for the fact that his gun didn't fire, he would have been shooting a 7-millimeter rifle, which is the defendant's admission in this particular matter that it was a 7-millimeter, at our law enforcement officers on the day in question.

There was [sic] two law enforcement officers, and but for the fact that the law enforcement officers did not -- were not able to obtain their weapon[s] in time to shoot back, this defendant could most likely be dead. So we have the best case scenario in this particular matter in that nobody was killed.

(7/17/17 Tr., p.20, L.13 – p.21, L.1.) The district court subsequently articulated the correct legal standards applicable to its decision and also set forth in detail its reasons for imposing Pinell's sentence. (7/17/17 Tr., p.34, L.6 – p.37, L.6 (Appendix A).) The state submits that Pinell has failed to establish an abuse of discretion, for reasons more fully set forth in the attached excerpt of the sentencing hearing transcript, which the state adopts as its argument on appeal. (Appendix A.)

Conclusion

The state respectfully requests this Court to affirm Pinell's conviction and sentence.